


Cabot Microelectronics is the world’s leading developer, manu-
facturer and supplier of high-performance polishing slurries for
chemical mechanical planarization (CMP), which is an enabling
step in the manufacturing process of the most advanced inte-
grated circuit (IC) devices and data storage components, includ-
ing rigid disks and magnetic heads. The Company is also a
supplier of specialized CMP polishing pads for use in conjunction
with its slurries.

Through the CMP process, manufacturers can polish the sur-
faces of ICs and data storage components to a near-perfect finish,
enabling the production of compact, multi-layer, high-performance
ICs, as well as superior quality data storage components. More-
over, in addition to improving device performance, the CMP
process also drives higher manufacturing yields and throughput,
translating to lower production costs for manufacturers.

One of the first companies to develop CMP slurries for IC
applications, Cabot Microelectronics supplies the majority of
slurries used globally for CMP in the manufacture of IC devices.
The Company has earned this market and technology leadership
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position by maintaining a diligent focus on its business strategy:
to innovate new, high-performance products in advance of
customer need; to enhance existing products on a continuous
basis; to maintain world-class global production and supply
chain operations; to provide hands-on technical applications
support; and to deliver leading customer service.

Cabot Microelectronics employs a team of more than 430
individuals, including highly skilled scientists and engineers,
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 Increase
Selected Statement of Income Data:
Revenue $227,192 $181,156 25%
Gross profit 118,773 94,866 25%
Operating income 62,439 46,818 33%
Net income 41,902 30,502 37%
Diluted net income per share $ 172 $ 139 24%
Shares used in computing diluted net income per share 24,327 21,888 11%
Selected Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $196,681 $136,106 45%
Net property, plant and equipment 97,426 71,873 36%
Stockholders’ equity 166,287 107,562 55%
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The great entrepreneur, Henry Ford, defined
obstacles as “those frightful things you see
when you take your eyes off your goal.” We
at Cabot Microelectronics couldn’t agree
more. Since our inception, our Company has
maintained a clear focus on a set of carefully
developed objectives—a focus so sharp that
we don’t see obstacles to our success, just
challenges waiting to be met. This outlook is a
Cabot Microelectronics hallmark, and it has
already helped us build our young Company
into a successful organization that is posi-
tioned to capitalize on the many oportunities
in our industry. A review of our fiscal year
2001 performance provides a clear example.

Without question, fiscal 2001 was an
intensely challenging year in both the global
semiconductor industry and the world
financial markets. During the first fiscal
quarter, the overall economy began to show
signs of weakness, but semiconductor manu-
facturers worldwide continued to produce IC
chips at record rates, creating a large global
surplus of chips, as well as an excess of
electronic components. In the second quarter,
the economy continued to decline, depressing
consumer spending and driving down sales of
electronic items. This, combined with the
continued build-up of excess IC inventory,
sparked a sudden and dramatic decrease in
global chip production that slowed the growth
in demand for many of our products.

Cabot Microelectronics responded quickly
and decisively to these events, all the while
keeping our eyes firmly fixed on our business
goals—namely, to perfect our product and
service offerings, to advance our position
as a market and technology leader, and to
deliver increasing value to both customers and
shareholders.

We carefully evaluated our expenditures,
weighing the relevance of each against its abil-
ity to provide strong customer support and
accelerate our progress in mission critical
areas. As part of this process, we determined
to maintain our workforce and introduced a
plan to tighten financial controls in certain

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS AND EMPLOYEES:

discretionary areas. These actions shored up
our ability to continue to spend in areas that
we have defined as crucial to our future, such
as funding key R&D initiatives, pursuing
select global expansion, and employing strate-
gies to attract and service customers.

What’s more, the difficult market helped to
confirm just how vital these strategic expendi-
tures are to our Company’s growth. Even as
IC manufacturers reduced production rates
and slowed capital investments, flattening
the demand for many of our slurries, they
intensified their efforts to develop advanced
semiconductor technologies. This fostered the
growth of our leading-edge slurry formula-
tions for use with innovative technologies, like
copper interconnect and low (k) material.
At the same time, manufacturers in the data
storage market also continued to adopt CMP
as a means of improving their manufactur-
ing yields and product performance, thereby
driving sales of our rigid disk and magnetic
head slurries.

Together, these factors enabled us to weather
a difficult period and proved the value of our
Company’s commitment to investing in next-
generation technologies well in advance of
customer demand. Moreover, the year’s events
convinced us that our aggressive approach
to fueling new R&D should position Cabot
Microelectronics to emerge from the industry
downturn with an even more compelling cus-
tomer value proposition than we had before.

SETTING NEW RECORDS

Despite the challenging economic and
industry environment, Cabot Microelectronics
ended fiscal 2001 with a number of accom-
plishments. We achieved record financial per-
formance, delivering revenue of $227 million,
up 25 percent from fiscal 2000 revenue of $181
million. We posted net income of $42 million,
or $1.72 per diluted share, up 37 percent
compared with prior year net income of $31
million, or $1.39 per diluted share. And we
fortified our industry leadership position by
continuing to deliver value to our customers.



At the same time, we drove
growth in several different prod-
uct areas—achievements that
required us to draw on multiple
skill sets, as well as distinct
manufacturing capabilities. For
example, in the advanced IC
slurry market, we increased rev-
enues from our iCue™ brand
copper interconnect products by
a factor of two-and-a-half compared with the
prior year, while in the data storage market,
we increased sales with both new and existing
customers.

We complemented these initiatives by tak-
ing steps to pave the way for our future. We
broke ground on a new R&D and office facil-
ity in Aurora, Illinois. Slated for completion
in March 2002, this facility will include a
state-of-the-art Class 1 cleanroom, as well as
leading-edge polishing, metrology and analyti-
cal equipment that will improve our product
development and time-to-market capabilities,
and enhance our ability to develop products
for emerging applications. We also expanded
our worldwide production capacity and sup-
port operations so that we are positioned to
meet the future needs of our customers. And
we began to implement an improved enter-
prise resource planning discipline that will
help us manage our growing global business
systems as efficiently as possible.

Our fiscal year 2001 accomplishments would
not have been possible without the more than
430 remarkable individuals who make up the
Cabot Microelectronics team. Our first full
year as an independent Company was an
exceptionally tough period for our industry,
but our employees demonstrated that their
personal commitment to our Company’s
success can make a meaningful difference. I
thank each of them for their contributions to
Cabot Microelectronics, and I congratulate
them on a job well done.

A SOLID FOUNDATION

It’s no mystery why those of
us at Cabot Microelectronics
have such a deep commitment
to our Company. In fact, it’s a
matter of simple logic: We oper-
ate in an exciting industry with
solid growth prospects, and we
have the qualities necessary to
develop those prospects into
something of enduring value.

A quick look at our industry highlights the
immense opportunities we face. Since its
inception 15 years ago, CMP has proved
highly effective in helping IC manufacturers
increase manufacturing yields and improve
performance of leading-edge chip technology,
thereby reducing their production costs. At
the same time, CMP has become necessary to
the advancement of technology, as it permits
semiconductor manufacturers to produce
chips that have feature sizes of less than 0.25-
microns, and that are both faster and more
functional than their predecessors. Finally,
CMP allows manufacturers to improve
IC performance and quality by employing
cutting-edge new materials, like copper wiring
and low (k) dielectrics, as well as by introduc-
ing new manufacturing techniques.

While CMP offers clear value to manufac-
turers of advanced IC chips, the current CMP
adoption rate remains just above 26 percent
for the entire IC industry. By 2003, industry
experts predict that this adoption rate will
increase to greater than 50 percent, driven by
ongoing consumer demand for more powerful
and more compact electronics products, as
well as by the need for semiconductor manu-
facturers to propel their growth through the
development of next-generation IC prod-
ucts—a requirement that actually increases
during difficult market environments. At the
same time, the need for more intricate cir-
cuitry on ICs is expected to increasingly
require more CMP process steps on each
wafer, driving a greater need for CMP con-
sumable products like ours.




What’s more, the CMP process has applica-
tions beyond the IC market. In recent years,
manufacturers of data storage products have
started using CMP to improve the quality and
capacity of hard disk drives (HDDs) and
decrease their production costs, by applying
the process to both rigid disk substrates and
magnetic heads. Still in an early phase of
acceptance, the CMP data storage market
offers solid growth potential. Moreover, this
market’s successful adoption of the CMP
process underscores the fact that CMP has
the potential to add value in a wide range of
additional manufacturing processes in still
untapped industries.

As one of the original developers of the
CMP process, our Company has devoted
significant time and resources to building
a strong presence in the fast-growing CMP
market. Our efforts have yielded a solid
foundation for growth that is supported by
three cornerstones: excellent technology,
world-class customer service and an extensive
global infrastructure.

THE LEADING EDGE

To remain at the forefront of the semicon-
ductor industry, our customers must con-
stantly innovate new fabrication processes,
new technologies and new applications. As
a Company responsible for enabling these
advancements, we cannot follow new industry
trends; we must stay ahead of them.

Our success in technological advancement
certainly benefits our customers. However, it
also makes our Company more robust, as it
ties our growth to the pace of the industry’s
technological advancement, versus merely its
overall level of chip production. In fiscal
2001, we affirmed that our ability to generate
growth from both of these factors is a cru-
cial—and extremely valuable—component of
our strategy.

While most manufacturers slowed the
production of ICs during the year, one
market segment continued to advance steadily.

This segment is made up of manufacturers
who produce the most advanced, or leading
edge, ICs.

Despite the industry slowdown, these cus-
tomers redoubled their efforts to develop
next-generation technology, knowing that by
creating or enabling the “killer application”
of tomorrow they will help to reverse the
industry downturn and to spur a rebound
in consumer electronics spending. Cabot
Microelectronics is one of the few companies
firmly established as a leading-edge supplier—
a direct result of our investments in R&D.

During 2001, we aggressively advanced
our R&D activities on several fronts. We
continued to work with customers to develop
the next wave of copper interconnect prod-
ucts, as well as to develop a number of
new CMP slurries for shallow trench isolation
(STI), ultra-low (k), tungsten damascene, noble
metals and other emerging applications. We
also introduced a one-step CMP polishing
product for data storage slurries. This new
one-step technology has the potential to revo-
lutionize the data storage CMP process and
increase our Company’s presence in this
promising market.

PREMIER SERVICE AND SUPPORT

Strong customer relationships are central to
Cabot Microelectronics’ success. Our cus-
tomers don’t simply buy our products. Rather,
they partner with us to explore the next inno-
vations in technology and to identify the most
efficient methods to fabricate their own high-
quality devices.

We take the trust of our customers very
seriously, as evidenced by the exceptional
team of professionals we employ. This team
includes experts in such specialized technol-
ogy fields as chemistry, particle technology,
colloidal chemistry and electrochemistry, as
well as leading applications, manufacturing
and quality engineers, customer service spe-
cialists and experienced product line managers,
all with a meaningful degree of experience



“We rema mistic about our
future. Industry experts predict that the
semiconductor market should rally to
post the consistent annual double-digit
growth rates that it has for the past
decade. At the same time, we are fueling
our R&D engine to identify new markets,
create new applications and attract new
customers for our CMP consumables.”




in the CMP arena. We bring the skills of
these professionals to bear by taking a multi-
disciplined approach to addressing the indi-
vidual needs of each of our customers. This
approach encompasses pinpointing our
customers’ next technological requirements;
developing and testing high-performance
solutions for these requirements; employing
precise manufacturing methods to deliver
flawless global equivalency; integrating new
products and processes into their daily opera-
tions; maintaining extensive and highly reli-
able supply chain operations to enable timely
product availability; and testing and refining
our products continuously.

In fiscal 2001, we strengthened our ability
to serve growing numbers of customers around
the world by adding a number of skilled
professionals in such key areas as R&D, cus-
tomer service, applications and technical
support, as well as by adding new customer
support locations in strategic regions of the
Asia-Pacific and European markets.

AN EXPANDING GLOBAL FOOTPRINT

A logical extension of our commitment to
customer service is our strategy to expand
our global operations. As we extend Cabot
Microelectronics’ reach into new areas of the
world, we position ourselves to provide
hands-on service and support to our many
customers that have multiple international
locations. Our global expansion strategy also
fuels our Company’s growth, as it allows us to
introduce our high-performance CMP con-
sumables to new customers in promising tech-
nology markets.

In fiscal 2001, we continued to expand our
global infrastructure in North America and
Asia-Pacific to accommodate the additional
production, distribution, sales and technical
support capabilities necessary to meet antici-
pated future demand. We ramped up our
new production facility in Aurora, boosting

our North American production capacity; and
we significantly increased our manufacturing
capacity in Geino, Japan so that we are fully
prepared to leverage the expected next wave
of growth in the Asia-Pacific market.

LOOKING AHEAD

As we concluded our fiscal year in
September, the market forces that impacted
our industry in 2001 showed signs of extend-
ing into fiscal 2002. This situation was fur-
ther impacted by the September 11 terrorist
attacks, creating a degree of uncertainty
regarding the strength of the U.S. and global
economies in the coming year.

Despite this, the Cabot Microelectronics
management team remains confident in our
capabilities, optimistic about our future and
committed to helping our customers prosper.
Our attitude can be summed up quite plainly:
We’ve never taken our eyes off our goal
before, and we don’t intend to now.

As we forge ahead, we do so with profound
gratitude to you—our shareholders, customers
and employees. With your support and confi-
dence, we will continue to maintain our trade-
mark focus in activities we pursue, and we
will work to build Cabot Microelectronics
into an even stronger organization than it
is today—one that is positioned to flourish
in the face of market uncertainties, drive
the progression of advanced technology
and generate increasing rewards for our
constituents.

Sincerely,

Dr. Matthew Neville
Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer
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INDUSTRY DYNAMICS AND GLOBAL GROWTH

A STRONG MARKET POTENTIAL

The market for CMP consumables offers
strong growth potential, as evidenced by its
multiple drivers. First, the market is driven by
the rate of IC production. Though the
IC production growth rate has slowed in the
past year, it has demonstrated consistent
annual double-digit growth for the past
decade, and industry experts predict that this
trend should continue. Second, the CMP
consumables market is driven by the pace of
technological advancement, which has
actually increased in the wake of the semicon-
ductor industry decline. CMP is a necessary
step in producing the most advanced ICs, as
well as those that use new materials, new
applications and innovative IC manufacturing

A POWERFUL GLOBAL INFRASTRUCTURE

Cabot Microelectronics is well positioned
to leverage this market potential. We are the
clear market and technology leader in the
industry, with exceptional technological skills,
superb manufacturing capabilities, unmatched
quality standards, a seasoned management
team, a strong balance sheet, and a growing

processes. As world demand for smaller, more
powerful ICs increases, the semiconductor
industry’s adoption rate of CMP is also poised
to rise dramatically. Moreover, most of these
advanced ICs require the application of
more CMP steps to the semiconductor manu-
facturing process, increasing the potential
need for CMP slurries. Finally, the CMP market
is driven by demand in market segments
other than ICs, such as data storage.
As manufacturers in these markets continue
to adopt CMP to improve performance
and quality, and reduce production costs,
growth in the CMP products industry is
also expected.
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global customer base. In the coming years, we
intend to leverage these strengths by optimiz-
ing and expanding our powerful global infra-
structure that includes strategically located
technical support, production, and service
operations throughout the world.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA—FIVE

YEAR SUMMARY

Year Ended September 30,

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Statement of Income Data:
Revenue $227,192  $181,156 $98,690 $58,831 $35,211
Cost of goods sold 108,419 86,290 48,087 29,747 19,974
Gross profit 118,773 94,866 50,603 29,084 15,237
Operating expenses:
Research and development 25,805 19,762 14,768 10,261 8,481
Selling and marketing 8,757 7,594 4,932 3,507 1,150
General and administrative 21,054 19,974 11,107 8,148 4,223
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles 718 718 720 720 720
Total operating expenses 56,334 48,048 31,527 22,636 14,574
Operating income 62,439 46,818 19,076 6,448 663
Other income, net 1,049 130 — — —
Income before income taxes 63,488 46,948 19,076 6,448 663
Provision for income taxes 21,586 16,446 6,796 2,211 (45)
Net income $ 41,902 $ 30,502 $12,280 §$ 4,237 $§ 708
Basic net income per share $ 176 144 $ 0.65
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 23,824 21,214 18,990
Diluted net income per share $ 172§ 139 $ 0.65
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 24,327 21,888 18,990
Cash dividends per share $ 000 $ 371 $ 0.00
September 30,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Balance Sheet Data:
Current assets $ 96,454 $ 59,053 $26,120 $15,581 $ 8,781
Property, plant and equipment, net 97,426 71,873 40,031 24,713 17,195
Other assets 2,801 5,180 4,123 4,837 5,547
Total assets $196,681 $136,106 $70,274 $45,131 $31,523
Current liabilities $ 26,366 $ 24200 $ 7,775 $ 4,870 $ 2,980
Long-term debt 3,500 3,500 — — —
Other long-term liabilities 528 844 422 233 119
Total liabilities 30,394 28,544 8,197 5,103 3,099
Stockholders’ equity 166,287 107,562 62,077 40,028 28,424
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $196,681 $136,106 $70,274 $45,131 $31,523

Certain amounts in the prior fiscal years have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Annual Report, including the following “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” includes “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. This Act provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking
statements to encourage companies to provide prospective
information about themselves so long as they identify these
statements as forward-looking and provide meaningful caution-
ary statements identifying important factors that could cause
actual results to differ from the projected results. All statements
other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking.
In particular, the statements herein regarding industry or general
economic prospects or trends, our future results of operations
or financial position and statements preceded by, followed by
or that include the words “intends,” “estimates,” “plans,”
“believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “should,” “could,”
or similar expressions, are forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements reflect our current expectations
and are inherently uncertain. Our actual results may differ sig-
nificantly from our expectations. We assume no obligation to
update this forward-looking information. The section entitled
“Factors Affecting Future Operating Results” of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K describes some, but not all, of the factors
that could cause these differences.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in con-
junction with our historical financial statements and the notes
to those financial statements, and our filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, including our Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

» o«

OVERVIEW

We are the leading supplier of high performance polishing
slurries used in the manufacture of the most advanced IC devices,
through a process called chemical mechanical planarization
(“CMP”). We believe that we supply approximately 80% of the
slurries sold to IC device manufacturers worldwide. CMP is a
polishing process used by IC device manufacturers to planarize
many of the multiple layers of material that are built upon sili-
con wafers to produce advanced devices. Planarization is a pol-
ishing process that levels and smooths, and removes the excess
material from, the surfaces of these layers. CMP slurries are lig-
uid formulations that facilitate and enhance this polishing
process and generally contain engineered abrasives and propri-
etary chemicals. CMP enables IC device manufacturers in pro-
ducing smaller, faster and more complex IC devices with fewer
defects. We believe CMP will become increasingly important in
the future as manufacturers seek to further shrink the size of
these devices and improve their performance.

Substantially all of our revenue is generated through the sale
of CMP slurries. Historically, a majority of our CMP slurries
were used in tungsten and oxide applications. We continue to
develop and sell CMP slurries for polishing copper and for use
in the data storage market and we also continue to develop
slurries for additional new applications. Since January 2001, we
have been challenged by one of the most significant downturns
in the semiconductor industry’s history as our customers’ inven-
tory levels were higher than in the past and end market demand
for products using IC devices slowed as a result of the overall
weakness in the global economy. As a result, growth in our
business has also slowed since that date.

Prior to our initial public offering on April 4, 2000, we
operated as a division of Cabot Corporation, a global chemical
manufacturing company based in Boston, Massachusetts. On
September 29, 2000, Cabot Corporation effected the spin-off of
its approximate 80.5% investment in Cabot Microelectronics
Corporation by distributing 0.280473721 shares of our com-
mon stock as a dividend on each outstanding share of Cabot
Corporation common stock outstanding on September 13, 2000,
or an aggregate of 18,989,744 shares of our common stock.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The following “Management’s Discussion of Results of
Operations” contains financial comparisons with prior periods
that are affected by certain agreements entered into with Cabot
Corporation at the time of our initial public offering. We histor-
ically sold various dispersion products to Cabot Corporation at
our cost of manufacturing. We entered into a dispersion services
agreement with Cabot Corporation, which became effective
upon the completion of our initial public offering, under which
we provide dispersion products to Cabot Corporation at our
cost to manufacture plus a margin. Cabot Corporation supplies
us with the fumed metal oxide raw materials for these disper-
sions. The effect of the agreement is to reduce both our cost of
goods sold and revenue for these dispersions since we no longer
purchase these materials and include them in either cost of
goods sold or revenue. In addition, we historically purchased
fumed metal oxides, critical raw materials for our slurries, from
Cabot Corporation at their standard cost. We entered into a
fumed metal oxide agreement with Cabot Corporation, which
became effective on April 4, 2000, under which we purchase
certain fumed metal oxides at contractually agreed upon higher
prices. The effects of these agreements on the comparison of
operating results are disclosed in the discussion that follows.

11



MD & A (Continued)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the
percentage of revenue of certain line items included in our
historical statements of income:
Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999

Total revenue 100.0%  100.0%  100.0%
Cost of goods sold 47.7 47.6 48.7
Gross profit 52.3 52.4 51.3
Research and development 11.4 10.9 15.0
Selling and marketing 3.9 4.2 5.0
General and administrative 9.3 11.0 11.3

Amortization of goodwill and

other intangibles 0.3 0.4 0.7
Operating income 27.4 25.9 19.3
Other income (expense) 0.5 0.0 0.0
Income before income taxes 27.9 25.9 19.3
Provision for income taxes 9.5 9.1 6.9

Net income 18.4% 16.8% 12.4%

Year Ended September 30, 2001 Versus Year Ended September 30, 2000

REVENUE

Total revenue was $227.2 million in 2001, which represented
a25.4%, or $46.0 million, increase from 2000. Of this increase,
$37.4 million was due to a 20.6% increase in volume and $8.6
million was due to increased weighted average selling prices.
Fiscal 2001 revenue would have been $3.8 million higher had
the Japanese Yen average exchange rate for the year held con-
stant with the prior fiscal year average. Total revenue in 2000
would have been $0.6 million lower had our dispersion services
agreement with Cabot Corporation been in effect throughout
the entire fiscal year. Most of our revenues are derived from
sales of products used in the manufacture of advanced IC
devices. Manufacturing of IC devices declined throughout cal-
endar year 2001 as a result of the downturn in the semiconduc-
tor industry and weak global economic conditions. As a result,
our fiscal 2001 quarterly revenues were the highest in our first
quarter at $68.6 million and were the lowest in our fourth fiscal
quarter at $51.4 million, which was essentially flat with rev-
enues in the third fiscal quarter. Given current industry and
overall economic conditions, it is difficult to predict our future
revenue trends.
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COST OF GOODS SOLD

Total cost of goods sold was $108.4 million in 2001, which
represented an increase of 25.6% or $22.1 million from 2000.
Of this increase, $17.8 million was due to higher sales volume
and $4.3 million was due to higher weighted average costs per
gallon. Cost of goods sold would have been $4.2 million higher
in 2000 had our dispersion services and fumed metal oxide
agreements with Cabot Corporation been in effect throughout
the entire fiscal year. Higher costs per gallon resulted from a
shift in product mix and higher raw material costs.

We expect that the cost of fumed silica used in the manufac-
ture of CMP slurries will continue to increase according to the
terms of our existing fumed metal oxide agreement with Cabot
Corporation, which provides for a fixed annual increase in the
price of silica of 2.0% of the initial price and additional
increases if Cabot Corporation’ raw material costs increase.
Also, in order to meet our needs for fumed alumina given the
anticipated growth in sales of fumed alumina-based slurries,
in December 2001 we entered into a fumed alumina supply
agreement with Cabot Corporation and an amendment to the
fumed metal oxide agreement with respect to its fumed alumina
terms. Under this fumed alumina supply agreement, Cabot
Corporation has expanded its capacity for the manufacture of
fumed alumina. The agreement provides that the price Cabot
Corporation charges us for fumed alumina is based on all of its
fixed and variable costs for producing the fumed alumina, plus
its capital costs for expanding its capacity, plus an agreed-upon
rate of return on investment, plus incentive payments if they
produce more than a certain amount per year. These financial
terms, along with those contained in the amendment to the
fumed metal oxide agreement are retroactive to October 2001
and our average cost per pound for fumed alumina will be
higher in the future than paid under the original fumed metal
oxide agreement. Had we paid this higher average cost per
pound for all fumed alumina purchased in fiscal 2001, cost of
goods sold would have increased by approximately $0.9 mil-
lion. We expect this dollar amount to increase in future years as
we anticipate continued strong sales growth in alumina-based
slurry products. Our need for additional quantities of fumed
metal oxides in the future will require that we enter into new
supply arrangements that could result in costs which are higher
than those in existing agreements.



GROSS PROFIT

Our gross profit as a percentage of net revenue of 52.3% in
2001 was essentially flat as compared to 52.4% in 2000. Gross
profit as a percentage of net revenue would have been 49.9% in
2000 had our dispersion services and fumed metal oxide agree-
ments with Cabot Corporation been in effect throughout the
entire fiscal year. On a comparable basis, the increase in gross
profit of 2.4 percentage points resulted primarily from favorable
product mix.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses were $25.8 million in
2001, which represented an increase of 30.6%, or $6.0 million,
over 2000. This resulted primarily from higher staffing levels
and operating supplies needed to support our continued invest-
ments in research and development. Key activities during the
twelve months ended September 30, 2001 involved the contin-
ued development of new and enhanced slurry products with a
significant focus on slurries for polishing copper, CMP polishing
pad technology and advanced particle technology. We expect
research and development expenses to increase in fiscal 2002
due to our commitment to technology advancement and as a
result of our new research and development facility.

SELLING AND MARKETING

Selling and marketing expenses were $8.8 million in 2001,
which represented an increase of 15.3%, or $1.2 million, over
2000. The increase was due primarily to the hiring of additional
customer support personnel in North America, Japan and Taiwan.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

General and administrative expenses were $21.1 million in
2001, which represented an increase of 5.4%, or $1.1 million,
from 2000. Fiscal 2000 includes compensation expense of $3.8
million related to options granted to non-Cabot Microelectronics
employees at the time of the initial public offering and a charge
for the accelerated vesting of long-term incentives and benefits
at the time of the spin-off from Cabot Corporation. Absent
these prior year charges, general and administrative expenses
increased 29.8%, or $4.9 million, primarily due to increased
staffing and other expenses necessary to support the general
growth of the business and the administrative activities of a
stand-alone company.

AMORTIZATION OF GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles was $0.7
million in 2001 and 2000 resulting from goodwill and other
intangible assets associated with the acquisition of selected dis-
tributor assets from a third party in 199S5. Effective October 1,
2001, we adopted SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” As a
result, amortization costs in fiscal 2002 will decrease by
approximately $0.4 million due to the discontinuation of good-
will amortization.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

The effective income tax rate was 34.0% in 2001 and 35.0%
in 2000. The decrease in the effective tax rate was mainly driven
by an increase in tax credits from expanded research and exper-
imentation activities.

NET INCOME

Net income was $41.9 million in 2001, which represented an
increase of 37.4%, or $11.4 million, from 2000 as a result of
the factors discussed above.

Year Ended September 30, 2000 Versus Year Ended September 30, 1999

REVENUE

Total revenue was $181.2 million in 2000, which represented
an 83.6%, or $82.5 million, increase from 1999. Of this
increase, $66.7 million was due to a 67.6% increase in volume
and $15.8 million was due to increased weighted average selling
prices. The volume growth was mainly driven by the increased
use of CMP slurries in the manufacture of IC devices. The
growth was especially strong with respect to sales of CMP slur-
ries for polishing tungsten. Total revenue in 2000 would have
been $0.6 million lower had our dispersion services agreement
with Cabot Corporation been in effect throughout the entire
fiscal year.

COST OF GOODS SOLD

Total cost of goods sold was $86.3 million in 2000, which
represented an increase of 79.4% or $38.2 million from 1999.
Of this increase, $32.5 million was due to higher sales volume
and $5.7 million was due to higher weighted average costs per
gallon. These higher costs resulted from higher raw material
costs, especially fumed silica cost increases associated with our
fumed metal oxide agreement with Cabot Corporation, and for
transportation costs associated with shipping raw materials
to our manufacturing plant in Japan. Higher manufacturing
costs also resulted from improved quality requirements and the
qualification of our Geino, Japan facility. Fumed silica costs
increased due to the terms of the fumed metal oxide supply
agreement with Cabot Corporation which contains provisions
for a fixed annual increase in the price of silica of 2.0% of the
initial price and additional increases if Cabot Corporation’s raw
material costs increase. Cost of goods sold would have been
$4.2 million higher in 2000 had our dispersion services and
fumed metal oxide agreements with Cabot Corporation been in
effect throughout the entire fiscal year.

GROSS PROFIT

Our gross profit as a percentage of net revenue was 52.4% in
2000 compared to 51.3% in 1999. The increase in gross profit
resulted primarily from favorable product mix.
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MD & A (Continued)

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses were $19.8 million in
2000, which represented an increase of 33.8%, or $5.0 million,
over 1999. Of this increase, $2.2 million represents additional
personnel and related relocation expenses in North America and
$2.9 million resulted from higher laboratory supply costs and
other operating expenses associated with our clean room. Also,
outsourced development activities increased by $0.8 million
and increased staffing in Geino, Japan added $0.5 million in
expenses. These increases were partially offset by $0.9 million
of decreased research and development allocations from Cabot
Corporation and $0.5 million of decreases in various other
areas. Key activities during the twelve months ended September
30, 2000 involved the continued development of new and
enhanced slurry products, CMP polishing pad technology and
advanced particle technology.

SELLING AND MARKETING

Selling and marketing expenses were $7.6 million in 2000,
which represented an increase of 54.0%, or $2.7 million, over
1999. The increase was due primarily to the hiring of additional
customer support personnel in North America, Japan and Taiwan.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

General and administrative expenses were $20.0 million in
2000, which represented an increase of 79.8%, or $8.9 million,
from 1999. Approximately $2.9 million of the increase repre-
sents additional personnel costs needed to support the general
growth of our business and $1.6 million in operating costs asso-
ciated with our new corporate office building. Increased costs of
purchased services and expenses related to our initial public
offering and spin-off from Cabot Corporation of $1.4 million
were partially offset by a decrease of $0.8 million in charges
from Cabot Corporation for corporate services. Also, non-
recurring compensation expenses were incurred of $3.8 million,
including $2.1 million related to options granted to non-Cabot
Microelectronics employees at the time of the initial public
offering and $1.6 million for the accelerated vesting of long-
term incentives and benefits at the time of the spin-off from
Cabot Corporation.

AMORTIZATION OF GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles was $0.7
million in 2000 and 1999 which related to goodwill and other
intangible assets associated with the acquisition of selected
distributor assets from a third party in 1995.
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PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

The effective income tax rate was 35.0% in 2000 and 35.6%
in 1999. The slight decrease in the effective tax rate was mainly
driven by a greater percentage of export sales resulting in
increased foreign sales corporation deductions.

NET INCOME

Net income was $30.5 million in 2000, which represented an
increase of 148.4%, or $18.2 million, from 1999 as a result of
the factors discussed above.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We had cash flows from operating activities of $62.5 million
in 2001, $31.9 million in 2000 and $9.0 million in 1999. Our
cash provided by operating activities in 2001 resulted from net
income of $41.9 million plus non-cash items of $17.6 million
and a net decrease in working capital of $3.0 million. Our prin-
cipal capital requirements have been for property, plant and
equipment additions and working capital needs to support the
expansion of our business.

In 2001, cash flows used in investing activities were $35.3
million, primarily related to the capacity expansion of our
Geino, Japan facility and construction of our new Aurora,
Illinois research and development facility. In 2000, cash flows
used in investing activities were $37.2 million, primarily related
to the construction of our Aurora, Illinois manufacturing facil-
ity, the purchase of land and construction of a new distribution
facility in Korea, the purchase of research and development
equipment and the purchase of additional land in Geino, Japan.
In 1999, cash flows used in investing activities were $17.1 mil-
lion, primarily due to the completion of our Geino, Japan facility
and construction of our Aurora, Illinois headquarters building.

We had cash flows from financing activities of $10.4 million
in 2001 which resulted from the exercise of stock options and
issuance of shares under our Employee Stock Purchase Program.
In 2000, cash flows from financing activities of $15.2 million
resulted primarily from capital contributions from Cabot
Corporation of $10.1 million, net proceeds from our initial
public offering of $82.8 million and borrowings of $17.0 mil-
lion under a term credit facility. We paid Cabot Corporation
dividends of $17.0 million in March 2000 and $64.3 million in
April 2000. Also, during the third quarter of 2000, we repaid
$13.5 million of borrowings under our term credit facility. In
1999, we had net cash flows from financing activities of $8.1
million which were capital contributions by Cabot Corporation.



At September 30, 2001, debt was comprised of an unsecured
term loan in the amount of $3.5 million funded on the basis of
the Illinois State Treasurer’s Economic Program. This loan is
due on April 3, 2005 and incurs interest at an annual rate of
6.37% until April 3, 2002 and 1.75% plus 70% of the three-
year treasury rate thereafter. On July 10, 2001, the agreement
between Cabot Microelectronics and LaSalle Bank for this loan
was amended and restated. Although the loan amount of
$3.5 million was unchanged, various other terms were revised
and the termination date was amended from June 1, 2005 to
April 3, 2005.

On July 10, 2001, we entered into a $75.0 million unsecured
revolving credit and term loan facility with a group of com-
mercial banks which replaced our $25.0 million unsecured
revolving credit facility and $8.5 million revolving line of credit,
both of which were terminated. Under the new agreement,
which terminates July 10, 2004, interest accrues on any out-
standing balance at either the institution’s base rate or the
eurodollar rate plus an applicable margin. A non-use fee also
accrues. Loans under this facility are anticipated to be used
primarily for general corporate purposes, including working
capital and capital expenditures. The credit agreement contains
various covenants. No amounts are currently outstanding under
the new credit facility and we are currently in compliance with
the covenants. No amounts were outstanding under the former
lines of credit at September 30, 2000.

We estimate that our total capital expenditures in fiscal year
2002 will be approximately $45.0 million, approximately $3.0
million of which we have already spent as of October 31, 2001.
Our major capital expenditures in 2002 are expected to be:

e approximately $17.0 million to expand our research and
development facilities and headquarters in Aurora, Illinois;
and

e approximately $15.0 million for advanced clean room
equipment, polishing and other equipment primarily for use
in our new research and development facility.

We believe that cash generated by our operations and bor-
rowings under our revolving credit facility will be sufficient to
fund our operations and expected capital expenditures in the
foreseeable future. However, we plan to expand our business
and continue to improve our technology and, to do so, we may
be required to raise additional funds in the future through pub-
lic or private equity or debt financing, strategic relationships or
other arrangements.

Cabot Corporation is currently a defendant in two lawsuits
involving Rodel. We have agreed to indemnify Cabot Corporation
for any liabilities or damages resulting from these lawsuits.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

Effect of Currency Exchange Rates and
Exchange Rate Risk Management

We conduct business operations outside of the United States
through our foreign operations. Our foreign operations main-
tain their accounting records in their local currencies.
Consequently, period to period comparability of results of oper-
ations is affected by fluctuations in exchange rates. The primary
currencies to which we have exposure are the Japanese Yen and
the British Pound. Our exposure to foreign currency exchange
risks has not been significant because a significant portion of
our foreign sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. From time to
time we enter into forward contracts in an effort to manage for-
eign currency exchange exposure. Approximately 15% of our
revenue is transacted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.
We do not currently enter into forward exchange contracts for
speculative or trading purposes.

Market Risk and Sensitivity Analysis Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

We have performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypo-
thetical 10% adverse movement in foreign exchange rates. As of
September 30, 2001, the analysis demonstrated that such mar-
ket movements would not have a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows over a one
year period. Actual gains and losses in the future may differ
materially from this analysis based on changes in the timing and
amount of foreign currency rate movements and our actual
exposures. We believe that our exposure to foreign currency
exchange rate risk at September 30, 2001 was not material.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

PRCEAVATERHOUSE(COPERS

To the Directors and Stockholders of
Cabot Microelectronics Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the
related statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity
and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Cabot Microelectronics Corporation at
September 30, 2001 and 2000, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

“Pricawalinrount(oopmme— LLP

Chicago, Illinois
October 25, 2001, except for paragraphs 2, 3 and 4
of Note 4, as to which the date is December 12, 2001
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended September 30,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 1999
Revenue $227,192  $181,156  $98,690
Cost of goods sold 108,419 86,290 48,087
Gross profit 118,773 94,866 50,603
Operating expenses:
Research and development 25,805 19,762 14,768
Selling and marketing 8,757 7,594 4,932
General and administrative 21,054 19,974 11,107
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles 718 718 720
Total operating expenses 56,334 48,048 31,527
Operating income 62,439 46,818 19,076
Other income, net 1,049 130 —
Income before income taxes 63,488 46,948 19,076
Provision for income taxes 21,586 16,446 6,796
Net income $ 41,902 $ 30,502 $12,280
Basic net income per share $ 176 $ 144 $ 0.65
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 23,824 21,214 18,990
Diluted net income per share $ 172 § 139 $ 0.65
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 24,327 21,888 18,990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS

September 30,
(In thousands, except share amounts) 2001 2000
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 47,677 $ 9,971
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,014 at
September 30, 2001 and $233 at September 30, 2000 26,735 30,595
Inventories 16,806 14,014
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,742 2,752
Deferred income taxes 3,494 1,721
Total current assets 96,454 59,053
Property, plant and equipment, net 97,426 71,873
Goodwill, net 1,045 1,328
Other intangible assets, net 1,562 2,002
Deferred income taxes and other assets 194 1,850
Total assets $196,681 $136,106
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 13,557 $ 11,646
Accrued expenses, income taxes payable and other current liabilities 12,809 12,554
Total current liabilities 26,366 24,200
Long-term debt 3,500 3,500
Deferred income taxes 268 160
Deferred compensation and other long-term liabilities 260 684
Total liabilities 30,394 28,544
Commitments and contingencies (Note 19)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock:
Authorized: 200,000,000 shares, $0.001 par value
Issued and outstanding: 24,079,997 shares at September 30, 2001 and
23,590,293 shares at September 30, 2000 24 24
Capital in excess of par value of common stock 107,335 88,290
Retained earnings 60,440 18,538
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1,191) 792
Unearned compensation (321) (82)
Total stockholders’ equity 166,287 107,562
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $196,681  $136,106

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year Ended September 30,
2001 2000 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Noncash compensation expense and non-employee stock options
Provision for inventory writedown
Provision for doubtful accounts
Stock option income tax benefits
Deferred income tax benefit
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other current liabilities
Income taxes payable, deferred compensation and other noncurrent liabilities

$41,902 $30,502 $ 12,280

7,787 4,891 2,777
1,822 4,451 900
902 434 130
781 183 —
6,587 — —
(394)  (2,117) (215)
131 85 141

1,892 (11,177)  (10,616)

(2,827) (8,8695) 646
1,196 (3,037) (143)
2,997 16,258 2,861

(232) 262 189

Net cash provided by operating activities

62,544 31,870 8,950

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment

(35,328)  (38,923)  (17,194)
2 1,675 65

Net cash used in investing activities

(35,326)  (37,248) (17,129)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Net capital contributed by Cabot Corporation
Net proceeds from issuance of stock

— 17,000 —
—  (13,500) —
— 10,070 8,067
10,390 82,765 —

Dividends paid to Cabot Corporation — (81,300) —
Net proceeds from stockholder — 124 —
Net cash provided by financing activities 10,390 15,159 8,067
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 98 152 112
Increase in cash 37,706 9,933 —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,971 38 38

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$47,677 $ 9,971 § 38

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income taxes
Cash paid for interest

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:
Issuance of restricted stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$15,059 $11,448 §$ —
304 350 —

$ 660 $ 123 § —
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY

Parent

(In thousands) Investment

Common
Stock, $0.001
Par Value

Capital
in Excess
of Par

Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive

Earnings

Accumulated
Other
Unearned
Compensation

Income Income

Total

Balance at September 30, 1998

Capital contribution from
Cabot Corporation

Issuance of Cabot Corporation
restricted stock under employee
compensation plans

Amortization of deferred compensation

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment

$ 36,512

8,067

2,050

Total comprehensive income

$ 4434

12,280

$ 172 $(1,090)

(2,050)
900
$12,280
802

$13,082

802

$ 40,028

8,067

900

13,082

Balance at September 30, 1999

Capital contribution from
Cabot Corporation

Capitalization of Cabot Microelectronics

Dividend paid to Cabot Corporation

Proceeds from initial public offering (net)

Issuance of stock options to non-Cabot
Microelectronics employees

Issuance of Cabot Corporation
restricted stock under employee
compensation plans

Amortization of deferred compensation

Issuance of Cabot Microelectronics
restricted stock under employee
compensation plans

Amortization of unearned compensation
on restricted stock

Accelerated vesting of Cabot Corporation
restricted stock under deferred
compensation plan

Proceeds from stockholder

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment

46,629

6,900
(53,586)

57

Total comprehensive income

$19

S

$ 2,225
53,567
(52,622)
82,760

2,113

123

124

16,714

(28,678)

30,502

974 (2,240)

(57)
1,180
(123)

41

1,117

$30,502
(182)

$30,320

(182)

62,077
9,125

(81,300)
82,765

2,113

1,180

41

1,117
124

30,320

Balance at September 30, 2000

Exercise of stock options

Tax benefit on stock options exercised

Issuance of Cabot Microelectronics
restricted stock under employee
compensation plans

Amortization of unearned compensation
on restricted stock

Issuance of stock options to non-Cabot
Microelectronics employees

Issuance of Cabot Microelectronics stock
under Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Modification of stock award grants

Net income

Net unrealized loss on derivative
instruments

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive income

24

88,290
8,746
6,587

660

106

1,651
1,295

18,538

41,902

792 (82)

(660)

421

$41,902

(632)
(1,351)

(632)
(1,351)

$39,919

107,562
8,746
6,587

421
106

1,651
1,295

39,919

Balance at September 30, 2001 $

$24

$107,335

$ 60,440

$(1,191) $ (321)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

We are the leading supplier of high performance polishing
slurries used in the manufacture of the most advanced inte-
grated circuit (“IC”) devices, within a process called chemical
mechanical planarization (“CMP?”). We believe that we supply
approximately 80% of the slurries sold to IC device manufac-
turers worldwide. CMP is a polishing process used by IC device
manufacturers to planarize many of the multiple layers of material
that are built upon silicon wafers to produce advanced devices.

The financial statements have been prepared by Cabot
Microelectronics Corporation (“Cabot Microelectronics,” “the
Company,” “us,” “
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and accounting

we,” or “our”), pursuant to the rules of the

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our financial statements reflect the historical results of opera-
tions, financial position and cash flows of Cabot Microelectronics
which, prior to the initial public offering and spin-off discussed
in Note 2, operated as a division and subsidiary (incorporated
October 1999) of Cabot Corporation (“Cabot Corporation”).
We operate predominantly in one industry segment—the devel-
opment, manufacture, and sale of CMP slurries. Certain reclas-
sifications of prior fiscal year amounts have been made to
conform with the current period presentation.

For the years ended September 30, 2000 and 1999, the state-
ments of income include an allocation from Cabot Corporation
of employee benefits and costs of shared services (including
legal, finance, human resources, information systems, corporate
office, and safety, health and environmental expenses). These
costs were allocated to Cabot Microelectronics based on criteria
that management believes to be equitable, such as Cabot
Microelectronics’ revenue, headcount, or actual utilization in
proportion to Cabot Corporation’s revenue, headcount, or
actual utilization. Management believes this provides a reason-
able estimate of the costs attributable to Cabot Microelectronics.
For the years ended September 30, 2000 and 1999, such allo-
cated costs amounted to $5,728 and $5,716, respectively.
Allocated costs may not necessarily be indicative of the costs
that would have been incurred by Cabot Microelectronics on a
stand-alone basis.

2. SEPARATION FROM CABOT CORPORATION

In July 1999, Cabot Corporation announced its plans to create
an independent publicly-traded company, Cabot Microelectronics,
comprised of its Microelectronics Materials Division. Cabot
Microelectronics, which was incorporated in October 1999,
completed its initial public offering in April 2000 (“initial pub-
lic offering”), receiving net proceeds of $82,7635, after deducting
underwriting commissions and offering expenses, from the sale
of 4,600,000 shares of common stock. Following the comple-
tion of the initial public offering, Cabot Corporation owned
approximately 80.5% of Cabot Microelectronics’ outstanding
common stock. Cabot Microelectronics paid Cabot Corporation

aggregate dividends of $81,300 of which $17,000 was paid
from borrowings under a term credit facility prior to the initial
public offering and $64,300 was paid with proceeds from the
initial public offering.

On September 29, 2000, Cabot Corporation effected the
spin-off (“spin-off”), of Cabot Microelectronics by distributing
0.280473721 shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock
as a dividend on each share of Cabot Corporation common
stock outstanding on September 13, 2000, or an aggregate of
18,989,744 shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider investments in all highly liquid debt instruments
with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, or market. Finished goods and
work in process inventories include material, labor and manu-
facturing overhead costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depre-
ciation is based on the following estimated useful lives of the
assets using the straight-line method:

Buildings 20-25 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Information systems 3-5 years

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to
expense as incurred. Expenditures for major renewals and
betterments are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining
useful lives. As assets are retired or sold, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and
any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations.
Costs related to internal use software are capitalized in accor-
dance with AICPA Statement of Position No. 98-1, “Accounting
for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained
for Internal Use.” Such capitalized costs were $3,965 as of
September 30, 2001 and since the associated projects have not
been placed in service as of that date, no depreciation expense
was recognized in fiscal 2001.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets were acquired in connec-
tion with a July 1995 purchase of selected assets (see Note 3).
Other intangible assets consist of trade secrets and know-how,
distribution rights and customer lists. Goodwill and other intan-
gible assets have historically been amortized on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets, including goodwill and other
intangible assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in
business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be fully recoverable or that the useful lives of
these assets are no longer appropriate. We believe that no mate-
rial impairment exists at September 30, 2001.

Foreign Currency Translation

Our operations in Europe and Asia operate primarily in local
currency. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of these opera-
tions are translated using exchange rates in effect at the end of
the year, and revenue and costs are translated using weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The related translation
adjustments are reported in Comprehensive Income in stock-
holders’ equity. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency
transactions are recorded in the statements of income for all
periods presented.

Foreign Exchange Management

We transact business in various foreign currencies, primarily
the Japanese Yen and the British Pound. Our exposure to for-
eign currency exchange risks has not been significant because a
significant portion of our foreign sales are denominated in U.S.
dollars. However, we have entered into forward contracts in an
effort to manage foreign currency exchange exposure regarding
our accounts receivable and payable positions denominated in
foreign currencies, and commitments for construction costs
associated with our Geino, Japan expansion. The purpose of
our foreign currency management activity is to protect us from
the risk that eventual cash flow requirements from significant
foreign currency commitments or transactions may be adversely
affected by changes in exchange rates from the commitment or
transaction date through the settlement date. We do not cur-
rently use derivative financial instruments for trading or specu-
lative purposes.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The recorded amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and long-term debt approximate their fair values.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that subject us to concentrations of
credit risk consist principally of accounts receivable. We per-
form ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial con-
dition and generally do not require collateral to secure accounts
receivable. Our exposure to credit risk associated with nonpay-
ment is affected principally by conditions or occurrences within
the semiconductor industry. We historically have not experi-
enced material losses relating to accounts receivables from indi-
vidual customers or groups of customers and maintain an
allowance for doubtful accounts based on an assessment of the
collectibility of such accounts.
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Revenue from customers who represented more than 10% of
revenue were as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999

Customer A 14% 15% 22%
Customer B 21% 17% 15%
Customer C 5% 11% 10%

Customers B and C in the above table are distributors.

The three customers above accounted for 37.1% and 48.0%
of net accounts receivable at September 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized upon completion of delivery obliga-
tions, provided acceptance and collectibility are reasonably
assured. A provision for the estimated warranty cost is recorded
at the time revenue is recognized based on our historical experi-
ence. In December 1999, the SEC released Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101 (“SAB 101”), which provides guidance on the
recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in financial
statements filed with the SEC. We have adopted the provisions
of SAB 101, which did not have a material impact on our results
of operations or financial condition for the year ended
September 30, 2001.

Research and Development
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

Prior to the September 29, 2000 spin-off, we were not a sepa-
rate taxable entity for federal, state or local income tax purposes.
For years prior to fiscal 2001, our operations were included in
the consolidated Cabot Corporation tax returns and the income
tax provisions were calculated on a separate return basis.

Deferred income taxes are determined based on the estimated
future tax effects of differences between financial statement car-
rying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and liabilities.
Provisions are made for the U.S. and any non-U.S. deferred
income tax liability or benefit.

Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”), we have elected to
account for stock-based compensation plans in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), and related interpreta-
tions. We disclose the summary of pro forma effects to reported
net income as if we had elected to recognize compensation cost
based on the fair value of stock based awards to employees of
Cabot Microelectronics as prescribed by SFAS 123.



Earnings Per Share

Basic net income per share is calculated based on the weighted
average shares of common stock outstanding during the period,
and diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the
weighted average of common stock outstanding, plus the dilu-
tive effect of stock options, calculated using the treasury stock
method. The calculation of weighted average shares outstanding
for the year ended September 30, 2000 includes the pro forma
18,989,744 shares that were owned by Cabot Corporation
prior to the closing of our initial public offering.

Basic and diluted net income per share for the year ended
September 30, 1999 have been calculated using the pro forma
18,989,744 shares that were owned by Cabot Corporation.
These shares take into consideration a 18,989,744 to 1 stock
split which occurred subsequent to March 31, 2000, but prior
to the completion of the initial public offering.

Comprehensive Income

We have implemented SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Compre-
hensive Income” (“SFAS 130”), effective October 1, 1998. This
standard requires us to report the total changes in Stockholders’
Equity that do not result directly from transactions with stock-
holders, including those which do not affect retained earnings.
Other comprehensive income is comprised of accumulated for-
eign currency translation adjustments and net unrealized losses
on derivative instruments.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires man-
agement to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reported period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Effects of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS 141”) and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”). SFAS 141 requires business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 to be accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting. It also defines the cri-
teria for identifying intangible assets for recognition apart from
goodwill. SFAS 142 addresses the recognition and measurement
of goodwill and other intangible assets subsequent to their
acquisition. This statement requires that intangible assets with
finite useful lives be amortized and intangible assets with indefi-
nite lives and goodwill no longer be amortized, but instead
tested for impairment at least annually. Effective October 1,
2001, we adopted SFAS 141 and SFAS 142 which resulted in

the reclassification of a portion of intangible assets regarding
workforce in place to goodwill. We determined that the result-
ing unamortized goodwill balance of approximately $1,326 was
not impaired. In accordance with the statement, we will cease
amortization of goodwill and will perform impairment tests
annually. Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets
was approximately $720 in both fiscal 2001 and 2000 and the
adoption of these statements will reduce amortization expense
by approximately $357 in fiscal 2002.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations™ (“SFAS 143”) which is effec-
tive for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. SFAS 143
addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and
the associated asset retirement costs. We do not expect the
adoption of SFAS 143 will have a material impact on our finan-
cial position or results of operations.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Account-
ing for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(“SFAS 144”) which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. SFAS 144 addresses financial accounting
and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets
and supercedes SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed
Of” while retaining many of the provisions of that statement.
SFAS 144 also supercedes the accounting and reporting provi-
sions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30,
“Reporting for the Impairment or Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions” (“APB No. 30”). We do
not expect the adoption of SFAS 144 will have a material
impact on our financial position or results of operations.

4. ARRANGEMENTS WITH CABOT CORPORATION

Our relationship with Cabot Corporation following the ini-
tial public offering and spin-off are currently governed by the
following agreements:

Fumed Metal Oxide Supply Agreement

A fumed metal oxide supply agreement with Cabot Corporation
for the supply of fumed silica and fumed alumina became effec-
tive upon the closing of our initial public offering and was
amended on December 12, 2001 with respect to its terms for
fumed alumina. Cabot Corporation continues to be the exclu-
sive supplier, subject to certain terms and conditions, of fumed
silica for certain of our slurry products produced as of the date
of our initial public offering and of fumed alumina up to certain
amounts for certain of our slurry products as of December
2001. The agreement provides for a fixed annual increase in the
price of fumed silica of approximately 2% and additional
increases if Cabot Corporation’s raw material costs increase.
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The agreement contains provisions requiring Cabot Corporation
to supply us with fumed silica in specified volumes. We are obli-
gated to purchase at least 90% of the six-month volume fore-
cast and must pay the difference if we purchase less than that
amount. In addition, we are obligated to pay all reasonable
costs incurred by Cabot Corporation to provide quality control
testing at levels greater than that which Cabot Corporation pro-
vides to other customers. Under the agreement and its amend-
ment, Cabot Corporation also supplies fumed alumina on terms
generally similar to those described above, except that certain of
the forecast requirements do not apply to fumed alumina, and
the price is fixed and unchanged for a base level of production,
and we agreed to pay a higher incentive price for volumes above
that level. The terms related to fumed alumina now provide us
with the first right, subject to certain terms and conditions, to
all fumed alumina that is subject to the fumed metal oxide
agreement. Cabot Corporation is not permitted to sell fumed
metal oxides to third parties for use in CMP applications.

Under the agreement and the fumed alumina supply agree-
ment, Cabot Corporation warrants that its products will meet
our agreed upon product specifications. Cabot Corporation is
obligated to replace noncompliant products with products that
meet the agreed-upon specifications. The agreement also pro-
vides that any change to product specifications for fumed metal
oxides must be by mutual agreement. Any increased costs due
to product specification changes will be paid by us. The agree-
ment has an initial term that expires in June 2005 and may be
terminated thereafter by either party on June 30 or December
31 in any year upon 18 months prior written notice.

Fumed Alumina Supply Agreement

Until December 2001, we purchased fumed alumina from
Cabot Corporation only under the fumed metal oxide agree-
ment. In order to meet our needs for fumed alumina given the
anticipated growth in sales of fumed alumina based slurries, we
entered into a fumed alumina supply agreement with Cabot
Corporation on December 12, 2001. Under this agreement,
Cabot Corporation expanded its capacity in Tuscola, Illinois
for the manufacture of fumed alumina and we have the first
right to all this capacity. The agreement provides that the price
Cabot Corporation charges us for fumed alumina is based on all
of its fixed and variable costs for producing the fumed alumina,
plus its capital costs for expanding its capacity, plus an agreed-
upon rate of return on investment, plus incentive payments if
Cabot Corporation produces more than a certain amount per
year. Quarterly payments of approximately $300 in respect to
capital costs will be made over the ten year term of the agree-
ment. The agreement has an overall ten-year term, which
expires in 2011, but we can choose not to renew the agreement
subject to certain terms and conditions and the payment of
certain costs, after five years.
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Dispersion Services Agreement

A dispersion services agreement with Cabot Corporation
became effective upon the closing of the initial public offering.
We continue to provide fumed metal oxide dispersion services
to Cabot Corporation, including the manufacturing, packaging
and testing of the dispersions. Under the agreement, Cabot
Corporation supplies us with the fumed metal oxide particles
necessary for the manufacture of the dispersions. The pricing of
the dispersion services is determined on a cost-plus basis. Our
obligation to provide Cabot Corporation with dispersions is
limited to certain maximum volumes and Cabot Corporation is
obligated to supply to us certain forecasts of their expected dis-
persion purchases. Cabot Corporation agrees not to engage any
third party other than Davies Imperial Coatings, Inc. (“Davies™)
to provide dispersion services unless we are unable to supply the
requested or agreed-upon services. The agreement has an initial
term that expires in June 2005 and may be terminated by either
party on June 30 or December 31 in any year upon 18 months
prior notice.

Facilities Lease Arrangements

Beginning in March 2000, we began subleasing from Cabot
Corporation the land and building in Barry, Wales that we uti-
lize in our business. As noted below under the caption “Master
Separation Agreement,” these assets were not transferred to
Cabot Microelectronics and accordingly, have not been included
in our balance sheet at September 30, 2001 and 2000. The lease
will expire after ten years, subject to earlier termination under
certain circumstances.

Master Separation Agreement

A master separation agreement with Cabot Corporation pro-
vided for the transfer of the legal ownership of substantially all
of the assets and liabilities of the former Microelectronics
Materials Division to Cabot Microelectronics. However, the
land and building located in Barry, Wales were not transferred
to us as discussed above under the caption “Facilities Lease
Arrangements.”

We assumed all liabilities and obligations of Cabot Corporation
relating to or arising out of our business operations any time on
or before the date of the transfer of the former division’s busi-
ness operations to us other than various excluded liabilities.

Under the master separation agreement, Cabot Corporation
transferred intellectual property rights related solely to the busi-
ness conducted by us, including patents, copyrights, trade-
marks, technology and know-how and licenses and other rights
concerning third-party technology and intellectual property.



We agreed to indemnify Cabot Corporation against any losses
or actions arising out of or in connection with the liabilities
assumed by us as part of the separation, including any liabilities
arising out of the current litigation with Rodel (Note 19) and
the conduct of our business and affairs after the separation date.
The Master Separation Agreement also provides that Cabot
Corporation would continue to defend the lawsuits instituted by
Rodel against Cabot Corporation until we notify Cabot
Corporation that we will assume defense of the lawsuits, which
we did in October 2000.

Trademark License Agreement

A trademark license agreement with Cabot Corporation gov-
erns our use of various trademarks used in our core business.
Under the agreement, Cabot Corporation has granted a world-
wide royalty-free license to use the trademarks in connection
with the manufacture, sale or distribution of products related to
our business and we agreed to refrain from various actions that
could interfere with Cabot Corporation’s ownership of the
trademarks. The agreement also provides that our license to use
the trademarks may be terminated for various reasons, includ-
ing discontinued use of the trademarks, breach of the agree-
ment, or a change in control of Cabot Microelectronics.

Confidential Disclosure and License Agreement

A confidential disclosure and license agreement governs the
treatment of confidential and proprietary information, intellec-
tual property and certain other matters. Cabot Corporation
granted a fully paid, worldwide non-exclusive license to us for
Cabot Corporation’s copyrights, patents and technology that
were used by Cabot Corporation in connection with our activi-
ties prior to the separation from Cabot Corporation. We
granted to Cabot Corporation a fully paid, worldwide, non-
exclusive license to copyrights, patents and technologies that are
among the assets transferred to us under the master separation
agreement and that would be infringed by the manufacture,
treatment, processing, handling, marketing, sale or use of any
products or services sold by Cabot Corporation for applications
other than CMP.

In addition, Cabot Corporation assigned to us an undivided
one-half interest in various patents, copyrights and technology
that relate to dispersion technology, which are owned by Cabot
Corporation and used in Cabot Corporation’s dispersion busi-
ness and our business. Any costs, taxes or other fees related to
the assignments and transfers of intellectual property will gener-
ally be paid by us.

Tax-Sharing and Tax Reporting and Cooperation Agreements

We were included in Cabot Corporation’s consolidated fed-
eral income tax group through the fiscal year ended September
30, 2000 as Cabot Corporation beneficially owned at least 80%
of the total voting power and value of our outstanding common
stock. At the time of our initial public offering we entered into a
tax-sharing agreement pursuant to which Cabot Microelectronics
and Cabot Corporation will make payments between them to
achieve the same effects as if Cabot Microelectronics were to
file separate federal, state and local income tax returns. Under
the terms of the tax-sharing agreement, Cabot Corporation is
required to make any payment to us for the use of our tax
attributes that arose prior to the spin-off until such time as we
would otherwise be able to utilize such attributes. Each member
of Cabot Corporation’s consolidated group is jointly and sever-
ally liable for the federal income tax liability of each other
member of the consolidated group. Accordingly, although the
tax-sharing agreement allocates tax liabilities between Cabot
Microelectronics and Cabot Corporation, during the period in
which we were included in Cabot Corporation’s consolidated
group, we could be liable in the event that any federal tax liabil-
ity is incurred, but not discharged, by any other member of
Cabot Corporation’s consolidated group. We will indemnify
Cabot Corporation in the event that the spin-off is not tax free
to Cabot Corporation as a result of various actions taken by or
with respect to Cabot Microelectronics or our failure to take
various actions.

Further, as of September 29, 2000, Cabot Microelectronics
and Cabot Corporation entered into a tax reporting and coop-
eration agreement that clarifies certain additional tax matters
not specifically addressed by the Internal Revenue Service
Private Letter Ruling and the Tax-Sharing Agreement. Pursuant
to the agreement, and subject to relevant tax regulation, Cabot
Microelectronics will claim the benefit of all tax deductions
resulting from the awards granted to either Cabot Corporation
or Cabot Microelectronics employees under the Cabot
Microelectronics 2000 Equity Incentive Plan. We are also
responsible for collecting and remitting all required taxes and
paying all employer taxes related to these awards.

Cabot Corporation is responsible for collecting and remitting
all required taxes and paying all employer taxes related to the
vesting of Cabot Corporation restricted stock awards granted to
Cabot Microelectronics employees. We are entitled to the bene-
fit of all tax deductions and will reimburse Cabot Corporation
for all employer taxes related to Cabot Corporation restricted
stock awards to Cabot Microelectronics employees.
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Cabot Corporation will receive the benefit of all tax deduc-
tions and is responsible for all employment taxes resulting from
the vesting of Cabot Microelectronics stock received by employ-
ees of Cabot Corporation in the distribution, who held
restricted Cabot Corporation stock.

Employee Matters Agreement

We have an employee matters agreement with Cabot
Corporation under which we are, with certain exceptions, solely
responsible for the compensation and benefits of our employees
who are former employees of Cabot Corporation. The principal
exception is the retirement benefits for employees of Cabot
Microelectronics. Cabot Corporation’s tax-qualified retirement
plans retain all assets and liabilities relating to our employees
who are former employees of Cabot Corporation (subject to
any distributions from the plans that are required or permitted
by the plans and applicable law).

Guarantee of Employee Loans

In fiscal 2000, Cabot Corporation fully vested the restricted
shares of Cabot Corporation common stock awarded to the
Cabot Microelectronics’ employees in conjunction with the
Cabot Corporation Long-Term Incentive Program. As a result
of the immediate vesting, all employee loans from Cabot
Corporation associated with the restricted stock came due.
Cabot Corporation agreed to extend the maturity date of the
loans to December 29, 2000, in consideration of our guarantee-
ing the repayment of the loans. All employee loans were repaid
to Cabot Corporation and we have no future obligation with
respect to the Cabot Corporation Long-Term Incentive
Program.

Extension of Management Services Agreement

A management services agreement with Cabot Corporation
governed certain administrative and corporate support services
provided by Cabot Corporation to us on an interim or transi-
tional basis prior to the spin-off. Cabot Corporation charged us
for all costs incurred to provide these services.

On September 29, 2000, we entered into an Extension of
Management Services Agreement with Cabot Corporation to
extend the term for certain safety, health, and environmental,
and information technology services to be provided, pursuant
to terms of the original Management Services Agreement
through March 30, 2001. The provision regarding certain infor-
mation technology services was subsequently extended until
May 30, 2002.
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5. ACQUISITION OF SELECTED ASSETS

On July 3, 1995, we acquired selected assets used or created
in connection with the development and sale of polishing slur-
ries. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. Accordingly, the purchase price of
$9,800 was allocated to the net assets acquired based on their
estimated fair values. Identifiable intangible assets, consisting
primarily of trade secrets and know-how, distribution rights,
customer lists and workforce in place, were valued at $4,300
and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their esti-
mated useful lives of 7-10 years. The excess of purchase price
over the fair value of the net assets acquired (goodwill) was
approximately $2,800, and is being amortized on a straight-line
basis over ten years. Accumulated amortization of goodwill and
other intangible assets as of September 30, 2001 and 2000 was
$4,488 and $3,770, respectively. In addition to the purchase
price, we also make contingent payments in the amount of
2.5% of applicable slurry revenue through June 30, 2002. These
payments are recorded and paid on a monthly basis and are
included in cost of goods sold.

6. INVENTORIES
Inventories consisted of the following:
September 30,

2001 2000
Raw materials $ 11,981 $ 9,139
Work in process 42 28
Finished goods 4,783 4,847
Total $ 16,806 $14,014

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

September 30,

2001 2000
Land $ 11,253  $10,541
Buildings 39,223 30,935
Machinery and equipment 45,445 34,479
Furniture and fixtures 2,034 1,690
Information systems 1,314 732
Construction in progress 13,676 2,377
Total property, plant and equipment $112,945  $80,754
Less: accumulated depreciation (15,519) (8,881)
Net property, plant and equipment $ 97,426  $71,873

Depreciation expense was $7,069, $4,174 and $2,057 for the
years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.



8. ACCRUED EXPENSES, INCOME TAXES PAYABLE AND
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the

following:
September 30,
2001 2000

Raw material accruals $ 609 $ 1,987
Accrued compensation 8,220 4,673
Warranty accrual 1,255 773
Fixed asset accrual 54 2,133
Income taxes payable 237 —
Other 2,434 2,988
Total $12,809  $12,554

9. LONG-TERM DEBT

At September 30, 2001, long-term debt was comprised of an
unsecured term loan in the amount of $3,500 funded on the
basis of the Illinois State Treasurer’s Economic Program. This
loan is due on April 3, 2005 and incurs interest at an annual
rate of 6.37% until April 3, 2002 and 1.75% plus 70% of the
three-year treasury rate thereafter. On July 10, 2001, the agree-
ment between Cabot Microelectronics and LaSalle Bank for
this loan was amended and restated. Although the loan amount
of $3,500 was unchanged, various other terms were revised
and the termination date was amended from June 1, 2005 to
April 3, 2005.

On July 10, 2001 we entered into a $75,000 unsecured
revolving credit and term loan facility with a group of commer-
cial banks which replaced our $25,000 unsecured revolving credit
facility and $8,500 revolving line of credit, both of which were
terminated. Under the new agreement, which terminates July
10, 2004, interest accrues on any outstanding balance at either
the institution’s base rate or the eurodollar rate plus an applica-
ble margin. A non-use fee also accrues. Loans under this facility
will be used primarily for general corporate purposes, including
working capital and capital expenditures. The credit agreement
also contains various covenants. No amounts are currently out-
standing under the new credit facility and we are currently in
compliance with the covenants. No amounts were outstanding
under the former lines of credit at September 30, 2000.

10. DERIVATIVES

In the first quarter of fiscal 2001, we adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“SFAS 1337),
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
which establishes accounting and reporting standards for deriv-
ative instruments and for hedging activities. All derivatives,
whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are required
to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. If the deriva-
tive is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair
value of the derivative and of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk are recognized in earnings. If the derivative is
designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective portions of
changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in other
comprehensive income and are recognized in the income state-
ment when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions
of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized
in earnings.

During fiscal 2001, we entered into two cash flow hedges to
cover commitments involving construction contracts associated
with our Geino, Japan expansion. The adoption of SFAS 133
resulted in a reduction to comprehensive income for the twelve
months ended September 30, 2001 of $632. We will reclassify
losses currently in other comprehensive income associated with
the cash flow hedges into earnings in the same period or periods
in which the related assets affect earnings. There were no other
significant derivatives as of September 30, 2001.

11. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Under the Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan, which
became effective March 13, 2001, certain eligible non-employee
directors elected to defer their compensation to future periods.
As of September 30, 2001, $111 was deferred under the plan.
We do not currently maintain a deferred compensation plan
for employees.

In fiscal 2000, certain officers and employees of Cabot
Microelectronics elected to defer certain percentages of their
compensation to future periods under the Cabot Corporation
Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan. This program was
discontinued for Cabot Microelectronics employees effective
September 30, 2000 and the $684 deferred as of that date was
rolled over to the Cabot Microelectronics Corporation Supple-
mental Employee Retirement Plan (“SERP”) explained in Note 14.
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12. JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

In September 1998, we entered into a three-year joint devel-
opment agreement with a customer in the semiconductor indus-
try. Under the agreement, we provided the customer with CMP
slurries of up to $3,000 over the three-year period in exchange
for the use of CMP equipment provided by the customer. The
arrangement is accounted for as a nonmonetary transaction in
accordance with APB No. 29, “Accounting for Nonmonetary
Transactions.” The CMP equipment is accounted for as an
operating lease in accordance with SFAS No. 13, “Accounting
for Leases.” The cost of leasing the CMP equipment is valued
based upon the slurries that the customer is entitled to receive
over the three-year period. Total revenue and lease expense rec-
ognized under this agreement were $684 and $833, respectively,
for the year ended September 30, 2001 and $637 and $1,000,
respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2000. Deferred
revenue of $513 and $363 was recorded as of September 30,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The agreement has been extended
through December 31, 2001.

13. PENSION PLANS AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
Cabot Microelectronics’ employees participated in the following
Cabot Corporation sponsored pension and postretirement plans
through April 30, 2000 and September 29, 2000, respectively.
¢ Noncontributory defined benefit pension plan including the
Cabot Corporation Cash Balance Plan (“CBP”), a defined
benefit pension plan, and the Cabot Corporation Employee
Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP?”); and
e Cabot Corporation’s postretirement plan, providing certain
healthcare and life insurance benefits to retired employees.
Those Cabot Corporation employees who accepted employ-
ment with Cabot Microelectronics terminated employment with
Cabot Corporation on September 29, 2000, but maintained
their vested and unvested rights in the above mentioned plans.
Cabot Corporation allocated periodic benefit costs (income) to
Cabot Microelectronics as follows:
Year Ended September 30,
2001 2000 1999

Pension (CBP) $— $(86) $61
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) — 70 99
Postretirement benefit costs — 75 99

Because our employees were only eligible to participate in the
Cabot Corporation pension plans through April 30, 2000, we
incurred a one-time charge in September 2000 for the acceler-
ated vesting charges associated with the spin-off of $150 and
$175 for the Cash Balance Plan and Employee Stock Ownership
Plan, respectively.
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14. SAVINGS PLAN AND OTHER INCENTIVE
COMPENSATION PLANS

Effective May 1, 2000, we adopted the Cabot Microelectronics
Corporation 401(k) Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) covering substan-
tially all eligible employees meeting certain minimum age and
eligibility requirements, as defined by the plan. Participants may
make elective contributions up to 12% of their eligible salary.
All amounts contributed by participants and earnings on these
contributions are fully vested at all times. The 401 (k) Plan pro-
vides for matching and fixed nonelective contributions by the
Company. Under the 401(k) Plan, the Company will match
100% of the first four percent of the participant’s eligible com-
pensation and 50% of the next two percent of the participant’s
eligible compensation, subject to limitations required by govern-
ment laws or regulations. Under the 401 (k) Plan, all employees,
even non-participants, will receive a contribution by the Company
in an amount equal to 4% of compensation. Participants and
employees are 100% vested in all Company contributions. The
Company’s expense for the defined contribution plan totaled
$1,693 and $320 for the periods ending September 30, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Effective May 1, 2000, we adopted the Cabot Microelectronics
Corporation Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan (“SERP”)
covering all eligible employees as defined by the SERP. The pur-
pose of the SERP is to provide for the deferral of compensation
to certain members of the Company’s management team or
highly compensated employees as defined under the provision of
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”) of
1974. Under the SERP, the Company contributes up to 4% of
these individual’s eligible compensation. All amounts con-
tributed by the Company and earnings on these contributions
are fully vested at all times.

In fiscal 2000, Cabot Microelectronics’ employees par-
ticipated in the Cabot Corporation Retirement Incentive
Savings Plan (“CRISP”), in which substantially all of Cabot
Corporations’ domestic employees were eligible to participate,
and under which Cabot Corporation made matching contribu-
tions of at least 75% of a participant’s contribution up to 7.5%
of the participant’s eligible compensation, subject to limitations
required by government laws or regulations. Contributions to
the CRISP on behalf of employees of Cabot Microelectronics
were $527 and $385 during fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Accelerated vesting costs of $200 were also incurred due to the
spin-off. On September 29, 2000, all of our employees were ter-
minated from Cabot Corporation and employees could rollover
their balance, take a distribution, or other action as defined by
the CRISP.

15. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

In March 2000, Cabot Microelectronics adopted an Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”). The ESPP allows all full or part-
time employees of Cabot Microelectronics to purchase shares of
our common stock through payroll deductions. Employees can



elect to have up to 10% of their annual earnings withheld to
purchase our stock. The shares are purchased at a price equal to
the lower of 85% of the closing price at the beginning or end of
each semi-annual stock purchase period. In March 2000,
475,000 shares of common stock were authorized to be pur-
chased under the ESPP. A total of 75,790 shares were issued
under the ESPP during fiscal 2001 and no shares were issued
during fiscal 2000.

16. EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

In March 2000, our Board of Directors and Cabot
Corporation’s Board of Directors adopted the Company’s 2000
Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), which was approved by
Cabot Corporation as the sole stockholder of Cabot
Microelectronics. Our Board of Directors amended the Plan in
September 2000 and in December 2000, amended and restated
the Plan, which was then approved by our stockholders in
March 2001. The Board and stockholders approved 6,500,000
shares of common stock to be granted under the Plan, subject to
adjustment for stock splits and similar events. The Plan allows
for the granting of three types of equity incentive awards:
Restricted Stock, Stock Options, and Substitute Awards.
According to the Plan, all employees, directors, consultants, and
advisors of the Company are eligible for awards under the Plan,
which awards will be awarded subject to applicable Award
Agreements. The Plan is administered by the Compensation
Committee of the Cabot Microelectronics” Board of Directors.

Restricted Stock

Under the Plan, employees and non-employees are granted
shares of restricted stock at the discretion of the Compensation
Committee. According to the Plan, shares of restricted stock
may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, or otherwise
encumbered or disposed of, except that restricted stock may be
pledged as security for the purchase price of the restricted stock.
Generally, under our Award Agreement for restricted stock,
restrictions lapse over a two-year period with one-third becom-
ing unrestricted immediately at the date of grant and the
remaining restrictions lapsing over a two-year period. Holders
of restricted stock have all the rights of a stockholder, including
voting and dividend rights, subject to the above restrictions. In
no event shall the Company issue more than 875,000 shares of
restricted stock under the Plan.

In October 2000, we granted 10,000 shares of restricted
stock to an employee at $39.19 per share and in May 2001, we
granted 4,000 shares of restricted stock to an employee at
$67.07 per share. In fiscal 2000, we granted 2,500 shares of
restricted stock to an employee at $49.25 per share. As stated
by the applicable Award Agreement, one-third of the stock was
immediately unrestricted with the remaining two-thirds becom-
ing unrestricted over the next two years. As a result, we
recorded unearned compensation of $660 and $123 in fiscal
2001 and 2000, respectively. Compensation expense associated

with restricted stock awards was $421 and $41 for the years
ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The number
of shares subject to restrictions were 10,168 and 1,667 at
September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Stock Options

Under the Plan, employees and non-employees may be
granted incentive stock options (“ISO”) to purchase common
stock at not less than the fair value on the date of grant and
non-qualified stock options (“NQSO”) as determined by the
Compensation Committee and set forth in an applicable Award
Agreement. The Plan provides that the term of the option may
be as long as ten years from the initial grant date, but options
granted during fiscal 2000 provide for a five-year term, with the
options vesting over a two-year period, with one-third immedi-
ately vesting on the date of grant under the Plan. Options
granted during fiscal 2001 generally provided for a seven-year
term, with options vesting equally over a four-year period, with
first vesting on the anniversary date of the grant. No more than
1,750,000 ISO shares may be issued, and none have been
granted to date.

In April 2000, we granted stock options to non-Cabot
Microelectronics employees. The term of these options is five
years from the initial date of grant, but the options were fully
vested on the date of grant. We accounted for these grants to
non-Cabot Microelectronics employees under the guidance of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (“SFAS
123”), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and, as a
result, recorded a charge of $2,113 ($1,373 after tax) at the
time of the initial public offering.

In fiscal 2001, we recorded compensation expense of $1,295
associated with revised stock option agreements involving a for-
mer director and a former employee. In fiscal 2000, a total of
$3,755 of expenses were recorded relating to options granted to
non-Cabot Microelectronics employees at the time of the initial
public offering and for the accelerated vesting of long-term
incentives and benefits at the time of the spin-off from Cabot
Corporation.

The following tables relate to stock options outstanding as of
September 30, 2001:

Weighted

Average

Stock Exercise

Options Price

Outstanding at September 30, 1999 — $ —
Granted 1,264,310 20.44
Exercised — —
Canceled (7,880) 20.00
Outstanding at September 30, 2000 1,256,430 $20.44
Granted 1,218,176 64.29
Exercised (397,963) 21.98
Canceled (49,655) 41.76
Outstanding at September 30, 2001 2,026,988 $45.97
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average

Range of Number Contractual Weighted Average
Exercise Price of Shares Life (in Years) Exercise Price
$20.00 849,428 3.5 $20.00
$39.18-$53.50 124,310 4.6 44.31
$62.00-$69.69 1,053,250 6.5 67.11
$45.97

2,026,988

Options Exercisable

Range of Number Weighted Average
Exercise Price of Shares Exercise Price
$20.00 550,324 $20.00
$39.18-$53.50 45,642 43.02
$62.00-$69.69 17,166 67.79
613,132 $23.05

We adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 upon
establishing the Plan. As permitted by SFAS 123, we continue to
apply the accounting provisions of Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion Number 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” with regard to the measurement of compensation
cost for options granted and shares issued under our ESPP. Had
expense been recognized using the fair value method described
in SFAS 123, we would have reported the following results of
operations using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model:

Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000
Pro forma net income $32,580 $27,634
Pro forma basic net income per share $ 1.37 $ 1.30
Pro forma diluted net income per share $ 1.34 $ 1.26

These costs may not be representative of the total effects on
pro forma reported income for future years. Factors that may
also impact disclosures in future years include the attribution of
the awards to the service period, the vesting period of stock
options, timing of additional grants of stock option awards and
number of shares granted for future awards. The fair value of
our stock based awards to employees under SFAS 123 was esti-
mated assuming no expected dividends and the following
weighted average assumptions:

Options ESPP
2001 2000 2001 2000
Expected term (in years) S N ) 75
Expected volatility 97%  35%  97%  35%

Risk-free rate of return 4.0% 6.0% 24% 6.0%
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17. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock

Each share of common stock entitles the holder to one vote
on all matters submitted to a vote of Cabot Microelectronics’
stockholders. Common stockholders are entitled to receive rat-
ably the dividends, if any, as may be declared by the Board of
Directors. Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Cabot
Microelectronics, the common stockholders will be entitled to
share, pro ratably, in the distribution of assets available after
satisfaction of all liabilities and liquidation preferences of pre-
ferred stockholders, if any. On March 24, 2000, the Board of
Directors amended our articles of incorporation to increase the
number of authorized shares of its common stock to 200,000,000
shares. There have been no changes to the number of authorized
shares during fiscal 2001.

Stockholder Rights Plan

In March 2000, the Board of Directors of Cabot Microelec-
tronics declared a dividend distribution of one preferred share
purchase right for each outstanding share of common stock to
stockholders of record on April 7, 2000 and with respect to
common shares issued thereafter on the date the rights become
exercisable. Under certain circumstances, a right entitles the reg-
istered holder to purchase from us one one-thousandth of a
share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock at a price
of $130.00 per one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, subject to adjustment.

The rights become exercisable based upon the earlier of: (i) the
date of the first public announcement that a person or group,
with certain exclusions, has acquired 15 percent or more of our
outstanding shares of common stock, or (ii) ten days following
the commencement of, or announcement of an intention to
make, a tender offer or exchange offer the consummation of
which would result in beneficial ownership by a person or
group of 15 percent or more of our outstanding shares of com-
mon stock. The rights expire on April 7, 2010.

Stock Splits

In March 2000, the Board of Directors approved an
18,989,744 to 1 stock split pursuant to which all 18,898,744
shares were issued to Cabot Corporation as of the date of the
initial public offering. There have been no stock splits during
fiscal 2001.



Dividends

Cabot Microelectronics paid Cabot Corporation aggregate
dividends of $81,300 in fiscal 2000, of which $17,000 was paid
from borrowings under a term credit facility prior to our initial
public offering (Note 9) and $64,300 was paid with proceeds
from our initial public offering. No dividends were declared or
paid during fiscal 2001.

18. INCOME TAXES
Income before income taxes was as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999

Domestic $53,606  $43,721  $18,655
Foreign 9,882 3,27 421
Total $63,488  $46,948  $19,076

Taxes on income consisted of the following:

Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999

U.S. federal and state:
Current $17,579 $17,417 § 6,522
Deferred 410 (2,145) (234)
Total $17,989  $15,272  $ 6,288

Foreign:

Current $ 3,817 $ 1,146 $ 489
Deferred (220) 28 19
Total 3,597 1,174 508
Total U.S. and foreign $21,586 $16,446 $ 6,796

The provision for income taxes at our effective tax rate dif-
fered from the provision for income taxes at the statutory rate
as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999

Computed tax expense at the

federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
U.S. benefits from research and

development activities (1.5) (1.3) (1.8)
State taxes, net of federal effect 1.5 1.9 2.7
Impact of foreign taxation at

different rates, repatriation

and other — — 0.8
Foreign sales corporation benefits (1.3) (1.7) (1.3)
Other, net 0.3 1.1 0.2

Provision for income taxes 34.0% 35.0% 35.6%

Significant components of deferred income taxes were as
follows:
September 30,

2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:
Depreciation and amortization $1,271  $§ 453
Employee benefits 858 2,175
Inventory 595 177
Product warranty 436 188
Bad debt reserve 355 —
State and local taxes 212 217
Deferred tax credits 1,435 953
Translation adjustment 764 —
Other, net 162 60
Total deferred tax assets $6,088  $4,223
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization $2,715  $1,251
State and local taxes 146 —
Translation adjustment — 140
Total deferred tax liabilities $2,861  $1,391

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

We lease certain vehicles, warehouse facilities, office space,
machinery and equipment under cancelable and noncancelable
leases, most of which expire within ten years and may be
renewed by us. Rent expense under such arrangements during
fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999 totaled $1,400, $1,288 and $1,439,
respectively.

Future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable
leases as of September 30, 2001 are as follows:

2002 $ 383
2003 218
2004 130
2005 77
2006 54
2007 and thereafter 186

$1,048

Other Long-Term Commitments

We have a long-term supply agreement with one of our
largest customers to provide this customer with specified quan-
tities of certain polishing slurries at agreed-upon prices. The
agreement expires, unless renewed by the parties, on January 1,
2002. We have another long-term supply agreement to provide
this customer with specified quantities of certain polishing slur-
ries at agreed-upon prices. This agreement expires, unless
renewed by the parties, in March 2004.
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(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

We have an agreement with Davies pursuant to which Davies
will perform certain agreed-upon dispersion services. We have
agreed to purchase minimum amounts of services per year and
to invest $150 per year in capital improvements or other expen-
ditures to maintain capacity at the Davies dispersion facility.
The initial term of the agreement expires in October 2004, with
automatic one-year renewals, and contains a 90-day cancella-
tion clause executable by either party.

We have a long-term agreement with a supplier to purchase
materials for a product line under development. As of
September 30, 2001, we are obligated to purchase, subject to
the supplier’s ability to deliver, $3,900 of materials over the
remaining term of the agreement and to reimburse the supplier
for all approved R&D costs related to the materials. The sup-
plier will repay such R&D reimbursements when our material
purchases from them reach certain agreed-upon levels. The
agreement expires in June 2005.

Contingencies

In June 1998, one of our major competitors, Rodel Inc., filed
a lawsuit against Cabot Corporation in the United States
District Court for the District of Delaware entitled Rodel, Inc. v.
Cabot Corporation (Civil Action No. 98-352). In this lawsuit,
Rodel has requested a jury trial and is seeking a permanent
injunction and an award of compensatory, punitive, and other
damages relating to allegations that Cabot Corporation is
infringing United States Patent No. 4,959,113 (entitled
“Method and Composition for Polishing Metal Surfaces”),
which is owned by an affiliate of Rodel. We refer to this patent
as the Roberts patent and this lawsuit as the Roberts lawsuit.
Cabot Corporation filed an answer and counterclaim seeking
dismissal of the Roberts lawsuit with prejudice, a judgment that
Cabot Corporation is not infringing the Roberts patent and/or
that the Roberts patent is invalid, and other relief. Cabot
Corporation subsequently filed a motion for summary judgment
that the Roberts patent is invalid because all of the claims con-
tained in the patent were not sufficiently different under appli-
cable patent law from subject matter contained in previously
granted patents, specifically United States Patents Nos.
4,705,566, 4,956,015 and 4,929,257, each of which is owned
by a third party not affiliated with Rodel or us. This motion
was denied on September 30, 1999 based on the court’s finding
that there were genuine issues of material fact to be determined
at trial. After the ruling on the summary judgment motion,
Rodel filed a request for reexamination of the Roberts patent
with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (PTO),
which was granted on November 12, 1999. On March 28,
2000, the court issued an order staying the Roberts action,
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which presently is in the discovery stage, pending completion of
the reexamination of the Roberts patent by the PTO. In light of
the reexamination, on September 29, 2000, the court denied the
parties’ respective motions to amend and dismiss, with leave to
refile subsequent to completion of the reexamination. The reex-
amination certificate was issued by the PTO on March 13,
2001; as of November 30, 2001, the case remains stayed. On
May 11, 2001, Cabot Corporation filed a motion for summary
judgment dismissing the case on the grounds that no case or
controversy remains given the reexamined patent.

In April 1999, Rodel commenced a second lawsuit against
Cabot Corporation in the United States District Court for the
District of Delaware entitled Rodel, Inc. v. Cabot Corporation
(Civil Action No. 99-256). In this lawsuit, Rodel has requested
a jury trial and is seeking a permanent injunction and an award
of compensatory, punitive, and other damages relating to allega-
tions that Cabot Corporation is infringing two other patents
owned by an affiliate of Rodel. These two patents are United
States Patent No. 5,391,258 (entitled “Compositions and
Methods for Polishing”) and United States Patent No. 5,476,606
(entitled “Compositions and Methods for Polishing”). We refer
to these patents as the Brancaleoni patents and this lawsuit as
the Brancaleoni lawsuit. Cabot Corporation filed an answer and
counterclaim to the complaint seeking dismissal of the com-
plaint with prejudice, a judgment that Cabot Corporation is not
infringing the Brancaleoni patents and/or that the Brancaleoni
patents are invalid, and other relief. On September 29, 2000,
the court denied Cabot Corporation’s motion to dismiss, and
granted Rodel’s leave to amend the Brancaleoni lawsuit to add
Rodel’s affiliate that owns the Brancaleoni patents, Rodel
Holdings, Inc. (“Rodel Holdings”), as a plaintiff. On October
24, 2000, Rodel and Rodel Holdings filed an amended com-
plaint that added Rodel Holdings as a plaintiff to the
Brancaleoni lawsuit. On November 6, 2000, Cabot Corporation
filed its answer and counterclaim seeking a judgement that
Cabot Corporation is not infringing the Brancaleoni patents
and/or that the Brancaleoni patents are invalid, and other relief.
On January 18, 2001, the court amended its scheduling order
and set June 15, 2001 for completion of discovery, October 25,
2001 for a final pretrial conference, and February 2002 for the
commencement of trial. On June 15, 2001, discovery closed as
scheduled and on October 23, 2001, the court denied Rodel’s
motion to extend and expand discovery. On November 2, 2001,
the court denied Rodel’s motion to add Cabot Microelectronics
as a party to the case. On September 28, 2001, Cabot Corporation
filed three motions for summary judgement that the Brancaleoni



patents are, respectively, invalid, unenforceable due to Rodel’s
inequitable conduct (denied as moot without ruling on the mer-
its on October 26, 2001) and that no infringement exists. On
the same day, Rodel filed a partial summary judgement motion
on infringement. Given these motions and other matters before
the court, the court has postponed the pre-trial conference with-
out having set a new date as of November 30, 2001.

In the Roberts lawsuit, the only product that Rodel to date
has alleged infringes the Roberts patent is our W2000 slurry,
which is used to polish tungsten and which currently accounts
for a significant portion of our total revenue. In the Brancaleoni
lawsuit, Rodel and Rodel Holdings have not alleged that any
specific product infringes the Brancaleoni patents; instead,
Rodel and Rodel Holdings allege that our United States Patent
No. 5,858,813 (entitled “Chemical Mechanical Polishing Slurry
for Metal Layers and Films” and which relates to a CMP pol-
ishing slurry for metal surfaces including, among other things,
aluminum and copper) is evidence that Cabot Corporation is
infringing the Brancaleoni patents through the manufacture and
sales of unspecified products. At this stage, while the court has
limited the scope of the Brancaleoni lawsuit, we cannot predict
whether or to what extent Rodel and/or Rodel Holdings will
make specific infringement claims with respect to any of our
products other than W2000 in these or any future proceedings.
It is possible that Rodel and/or Rodel Holdings will claim that
many of our products infringe its patents.

Although Cabot Corporation is the only named defendant in
these lawsuits at present, the defense of which we have assumed
and now are controlling, we have agreed to indemnify Cabot
Corporation for any and all losses and expenses arising out of
this litigation as well as any other litigation arising out of our
business. Also, while the court has ruled that we cannot be
added as a party to the Brancaleoni lawsuit, we at some point
could be added as a named defendant in these or other lawsuits.
While we believe there are meritorious defenses to the pending
actions and intend to continue to defend them vigorously, these
defenses may not be successful. If Rodel (and/or Rodel
Holdings) prevails in either of these cases, we may have to pay
damages and, in the future, may be prohibited from producing
any products found to infringe or required to pay Rodel (and/or
Rodel Holdings) royalty and licensing fees with respect to sales
of those products. We do not believe a loss is probable, nor can
we estimate the amount of loss, if any, that might result from
this matter. Accordingly, no loss provision has been made in our
financial statements for any of these matters.

20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128,
“Earnings per Share,” requires companies to provide a reconcil-
iation of the numerator and denominator of the basic and
diluted earnings per share computations. Basic and diluted earn-
ings per share were calculated as follows:

(In thousands, except for share Year Ended September 30,
and per share amounts) 2001 2000 1999

Numerator:
Income available to
common shares

(numerator) $41,902 $30,502 $12,280
Denominator:
Weighted average
common shares
(denominator for
basic calculation) 23,823,790 21,214,414 18,989,744
Weighted average effect
of dilutive securities:
Stock-based
compensation 502,812 673,342 —
Denominator for
diluted calculation 24,326,602 21,887,756 18,989,744
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 1.76 $ 1.44 $ 0.65
Diluted $ 1.72 $ 1.39 $ 0.65

21. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY INDUSTRY SEGMENT
AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA

We have adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 131”), which
was effective for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999. We
operate predominantly in one industry segment—the develop-
ment, manufacture, and sale of CMP slurries.

Revenues are attributed to the United States and foreign
regions based upon the customer location and not the geo-
graphic location from which our products were shipped.
Financial information by geographic area was as follows:

September 30,

2001 2000 1999
Revenue:
United States $ 87,049 § 81,070  $52,950
Europe 30,583 18,244 13,034
Asia 109,560 81,842 32,706
Total $227,192  $181,156  $98,690
Property, plant and equipment, net:
United States $ 64,171 $ 50,421  $25,324
Europe 1,943 2,147 3,139
Asia 31,312 19,305 11,568
Total $ 97,426 $ 71,873  $40,031
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SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following table presents our unaudited financial information for the eight quarters ended September 30, 2001. This unaudited
financial information has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
applied on a basis consistent with the annual audited financial statements and in the opinion of management, include all necessary
adjustments, which consist only of normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the financial results for the periods. The
results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.

(Unaudited and in thousands,

Sept. 30, June 30, March 31, Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, March 31, Dec. 31,

except per share amounts) 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000 2000 1999
Revenue $51,411 $51,470 $55,695 $68,616 $56,186 $50,589 $39,335 $35,046
Cost of goods sold 25,305 24,628 25,923 32,563 27,182 22,983 19,815 16,310
Gross profit 26,106 26,842 29,772 36,053 29,004 27,606 19,520 18,736
Operating expenses:

Research and development 6,297 6,165 6,805 6,538 5,244 5213 4,729 4,576

Selling and marketing 2,292 1,947 2,249 2,269 2,433 2,128 1,675 1,357

General and administrative 4,106 5,316 6,485 5,147 6,756 6,316 3,326 3,575

Amortization of goodwill and other

intangible assets 179 180 180 179 180 179 180 180

Total operating expenses 12,874 13,608 15,719 14,133 14,613 13,836 9,910 9,688
Operating income 13,232 13,234 14,053 21,920 14,391 13,770 9,610 9,048
Other income, net 208 166 238 437 3 20 107 —
Income before taxes 13,440 13,400 14,291 22,357 14,394 13,790 9,717 9,048
Provision for income taxes 4,217 4,544 4,907 7,918 4,646 5,000 3,500 3,300
Net income $ 9,223 § 8,856 § 9,384 $14,439 $ 9,748 § 8,790 $ 6,217 $ 5,748
Basic net income per share $ 038 % 037 $§ 039 $ 061 $§ 041 $ 038 $ 033 $ 0.30
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 24,043 23,975 23,800 23,608 23,590 23,383 18,990 18,990
Diluted net income per share $ 038 % 036 $ 039 $ 059 $ 040 $ 037 $ 033 $ 0.30
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 24,510 24,450 24,328 24,290 24,353 23,921 18,990 18,990
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MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The accompanying financial statements were prepared by
Cabot Microelectronics in conformity with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States of America. Cabot
Microelectronics’ management is responsible for the integrity of
these statements and of the data, estimates and judgments that
underlie them.

Cabot Microelectronics maintains a system of internal
accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance
that its assets are safeguarded from loss or unauthorized use,
that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, and that
financial records are reliable and adequate for public reporting.
The standard of reasonable assurance is based on management’s
judgment that the cost of such controls should not exceed their
associated benefits. The system is monitored and evaluated on
an ongoing basis by management in conjunction with its inter-
nal audit function, independent accountants, and the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors provides gen-
eral oversight responsibility for the financial statements.
Composed entirely of Directors who are independent and not
employees of Cabot Microelectronics, the Committee meets
periodically with Cabot Microelectronics management, internal
auditors and the independent accountants to review the quality
of the financial reporting and internal controls, as well as the
results of the auditing efforts. The internal auditors and inde-
pendent accountants have full and direct access to the Audit
Committee, with and without management present.

A Al

Matthew Neville
Chief Executive Officer

Martin M. Ellen
Chief Financial Officer

Samd L. 105/

Daniel S. Wobby
Principal Accounting Officer
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MARKET FOR COMPANY’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock has traded publicly on the Nasdaq
National Market® under the symbol “CCMP” since our initial
public offering on April 4, 2000. The following table sets forth
the range of quarterly high and low closing sales prices for our
common stock on the Nasdaq National Market.

High Low

Fiscal 2000 Third Quarter

(from April 4, 2000) $49.38  $24.88
Fiscal 2000 Fourth Quarter 65.13 40.56
Fiscal 2001 First Quarter 57.00 36.63
Fiscal 2001 Second Quarter 99.38 38.31
Fiscal 2001 Third Quarter 76.41 38.00
Fiscal 2001 Fourth Quarter 79.34 48.31
Fiscal 2002 First Quarter 81.16 43.15
Fiscal 2002 Second Quarter

(through January 11, 2002) 86.54 78.27

As of November 30, 2001, there were approximately 1,465
holders of record of our common stock. In the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2000, Cabot Microelectronics paid Cabot
Corporation dividends of $81.3 million, of which $17.0 million
was paid from borrowings under a term credit facility prior to
the initial public offering and $64.3 million was paid with
proceeds from the initial public offering. No dividends were
declared or paid in fiscal 2001 and we currently do not antici-
pate paying cash dividends in the future.
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